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Mirada Community Development District 

Dear Board Members: 

The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of Mirada Community Development District will be held on 
December 13, 2019 at 2:00 p.m. at Lennar Homes, 10481 Six Mile Cypress Parkway, Fort Myers, Florida. 
Following is the advance agenda for the meeting: 

1. Oath of Office for Newly Elected Supervisors Elected at the Landowners Election held on November 8, 2019 
- Seat #1, Seat #4, and Seat #5 

2. Roll Call 

3. Organizational Matters 
A. Consideration of Resolution #2020-01 Canvassing and Certifying the Results of the Landowners 

Election 

B. Consideration of Resolution #2020-02 Electing Officers 

4. Approval of the Minutes of the August 9, 2019 Meeting 

5. Acceptance of Conveyance of Common Areas 

6. Consideration of Engagement Letter with Grau & Associates to perform the Audit for Fiscal Year Ending 
September 30, 2019 

7. Staff Reports 
A. Attorney 

B. Engineer 

C. Manager 

8. Financial Reports 
A. Approval of Check Run Summary 

B. Combined Balance Sheet 
1) September 30, 2019 

2) October 31, 2019 

9. Supervisors Requests and Audience Comments 
A. Discussion of Property and Responsibilities of CDD and HOA within the Community and Status of 

COD Turnover to Mirada Property Owners 

10. Adjournment 

Meetings are open to the public and may be continued to a time, date and place certain. For more information 
regarding this CDD please visit the website: http://www.miradacdd.com 



RESOLUTION 2020-01 

A RESOLUTION CANVASSING AND CERTIFYING THE RESULTS 

OF THE LANDOWNERS ELECTION OF SUPERVISORS HELD 

PURSUANT TO SECTION 190.006(2), FLORIDA STATUTES 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 190.006(2), Florida Statute, a landowners meeting is required 

to be held within 90 days of the District's creation and every two years following the creation of a 

Community Development District for the purpose of electing three Supervisors of the District; and 

WHEREAS, following proper publication of notice thereof, such landowners meeting was 

held on November 08, 2019 at which the below recited persons were duly elected by virtue of the 

votes cast in their respective favor; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors by means of this Resolution desire to canvas the votes 

and declare and certify the results of said election; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS OF THE MIRADA COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT; 

1. The following persons are found, certified, and declared to have been duly elected as 

Supervisors of and for the District, having been elected by the votes cast in their favor as shown, to 

wit: 

Bob Hajicek - Seat #4 31 Votes 

Stephen Gabor - Seat #5 31 Votes 

Russell Smith - Seat #1 25 Votes 

2. In accordance with said statute, and by virtue of the number of votes cast for the 

respective Supervisors, they are declared to have been elected for the following terms of office: 

I 
! 



Bob Hajicek - Seat #4 

Stephen Gabor - Seat #5 

Russell Smith - Seat #1 

-, 

four (4) year term 

four (4) year term 

two (2) year term 

3. Said terms of office shall commence immediately upon the adoption of this 
Resolution. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS DAY Of -------

Chairman I Vice Chairman 

Secretary I Assistant Secretary 



RESOLUTION 2020-02 

A RESOLUTION ELECTING OFFICERS OF THE 
MIRADA COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the Mirada Community 
Development District at a regular business meeting following the landowners 

meeting held on November 8, 2019 desires to elect the below recited persons to the 

offices specified. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD 
OF SUPERVISORS OF THE MIRADA COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

1. The following persons were elected to the offices shown, to wit: 

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 

Chairman 

Vice Chairman 

Treasurer 

Secretary 

Assistant Secretary 

Assistant Secretary 

Assistant Secretary 

Assistant Secretary 

DAY OF __________ _ 

Chairman I Vice Chairman 

Secretary I Assistant Secretary 



MINUTES OF MEETING 
MIRADA 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Mirada Community 

Development District was held on Friday, August 9, 2019 at 2:00 p.m. at 10481 Six Mile 

Cypress Parkway, Ft. Myers, Florida. 

Present and constituting a quorum were: 

Russell Smith 
Dalton Drake 
Alex Hinebaugh 
Stephen Gabor 

Also present were: 

Paul Winkeljohn 
Ginger Wald 
Carl Barraco 
Bob Hajicek 
David Westbrook 
Marilyn Westbrook 

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS 

Chairman 
Vice Chairman 
Assistant Secretary 
Assistant Secretary 

District Manager 
District Counsel (by phone) 
District Engineer 
Resident 
Resident 
Resident 

Roll Call 
Mr. Winkeljohn called the meeting to order and called the roll. 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Organizational Matters 
A. Consideration of Appointment of Supervisor to Unexpired Term of Office 

(11/2019) 
B. Oath of Office for Newly Appointed Supervisor 
C. Election of Officers 
Mr. Winkeljohn: This Board does have an open seat, if you want to table that or 

take action on it that's up to the Board. 

Mr. Smith: I don't have any nominees today, if none of the other Board members 

do, but I don't have anyone to nominate today. 

Mr. Winkeljohn: Ok, so we can table that. Thank you. 



August 9, 2019 Mirada COD 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of the Minutes of the 
March 8, 2019 Meeting 

Mr. Winkeljohn : The minutes from your March 8th meeting have been circulated. 

If those are in order, or if there are any questions, I'll take them, or a motion to approve 

is appreciated. 

On MOTION by Mr. Smith seconded by Mr. Gabor with all in 
favor, the Minutes of the March 8, 2019 Meeting were 
approved. 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Hearing to Adopt the 
Fiscal Year 2020 Budget 

A. Motion to Open the Public Hearing 
Mr. Winkeljohn: Alright, as you guys know we try to be efficient with our business, 

and today is the public hearing to adopt the 2020 budget, back in March we proposed the 

budget to keep the assessment the same, we also clarified that our needs of the District 

were not changing, so at this time it would be appreciated if we could open the public 

hearing for discussion and approval by motion. 

On MOTION by Mr. Smith seconded by Mr. Drake with all in 
favor, opening the Public Hearing was approved. 

B. Public Comment and Discussion 
Mr. Winkeljohn: At this time we would take public comment and discussion, and 

as I was saying, the only open items we had have been completely clarified and we're 

actually going to take some action on that discussion which is the maintenance of the 

District, and for everyone's purposes the master plan for this community is really to have 

the HOA and its representatives steer the ship and be in charge of the day to day 

operations and all of the maintenance costs, whereas the District would sit sort of in the 

quiet background and serve and fund it's purposes, but the actual work is being done by 

the HOA for a better way to say it. 
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Mr. Smith: And all the being said, that is sort of the present pleasure of the present 

Board, but were the Board to change, these are assets that are owned by the District and 

it's primarily their responsibility to take care of them so this Board deciding to have the 

HOA take care of those things because we think it's more efficient, but if a future Board 

had a different opinion they could do that. 

Mr. Winkeljohn: Agreed, and in my experience I would lean that way because the 

District's responsibilities are small enough where the day to day responsibilities of the 

HOA draw a more day to day observation and so the person, or the folks that would have 

the best sense of the needs are the ones doing it on a daily basis. So, that fits but your 

point is well taken, a year from now, residents may find a better way or a different way to 

slice that and we can tackle that at that time, but for today's purposes, that's the overview 

of this budget. Again, we're paying and funding the requirements of the District to keep 

it right there where it belongs but again, in a future time, if the community wanted to 

change that, the District is an excellent tool for that through a funding source. With that, 

are there any questions from the public or comments? 

Mr. Westbrook: I have a question. 

Mr. Winkeljohn: Yes sir, can you state your name for the record? 

Mr. Westbrook: I'm sorry, David Westbrook. 

Mr. Winkeljohn: Thank you. 

Mr. Westbrook: A question about the budget line item for ADA website 

compliance? 

· Mr. Winkeljohn: Yes, so basically the short story is there were several lawsuits 

that gobbled up CDDs as well, the ruling in each of those lawsuits essentially said that 

they had 18 months to become compliant with the ADA requirements, which is for most 

of the sight impaired so their reader systems work properly on the website. We did some 

immediate conversions to your website and we're continuing to monitor the legal world 

because it's changing quite regularly but, we're putting the best practices in place for your 

community, just like all of our clients to keep you in compliance. 

Mr. Westbrook: Do we have a company that's actually providing that service? 
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Mr. Winkeljohn: We have a handful actually, I have multiple web designers, as 

well as ADA compliance companies that we've contracted with to review the site, test it, 

and give advice, or make corrections. 

Mr. Westbrook: Ok, and the reason I'm asking, I sit on another COD Board, and 

we're just going through some proposals and the initial website setup, the best deal we 

got is for about $2,800 for the first year, plus a $900 annual maintenance fee. 

Mr. Winkeljohn: Right, so yours was originally a $500 fee and we've added a $500 

ADA compliance element to it, and because I have the ability to do the sites in-house, I 

didn't have to outsource everything. I know I will be recommending to my clients different 

strategies depending on what kind of website they have, and what we call a compliance 

website, which means it's complying with the state requirements, and serves the residents 

without a doubt, that level of website I can do in-house with consultants. Some of my 

clients have a full service website because they have a small HOA footprint so they have 

billing systems, they have water and sewer, so it could be that big. Those websites we 

outsource the whole thing because it just fits, but I also do a lot of municipalities so I have 

the experts that got caught first in this process, they got hit the hardest helping me as 

well. So, I've got sort of an all net approach, cast a wide net kind of thing. I'm hearing, 

and Ginger will probably correct me on the latest details but, I'm hearing the pendulum is 

being pushed in both directions with each case. Ginger, did you have anything to add on 

that topic? 

Ms. Wald: No, you basically covered it fairly well . 

Mr. Winkeljohn: Thank you. Are there any other questions? Or did that answer 

your question? 

Mr. Westbrook: You did. 

Mr. Winkeljohn: Alright, thank you. 

Mr. Westbrook: What function does the engineer play in this? 

Mr. Winkeljohn: Well , he comes to our meetings, but basically just before the 

meeting you mentioned, we were talking about some of the regulatory permits, how they 

go through the construction phase to operational phase, that would be an excellent 

example of what your engineer would be doing in the next few years, is helping us shift 

from construction phase into operational phase, that's one example, plus any 
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interpretations, all engineering services, he's at our disposal, they charge as required not 

a fixed rate, so it works out really well. It's unusual actually compared to the HOA world, 

tha.t CDDs are unique, they have an engineer on staff at all times. 

Mr. Westbrook: How are we not in compliance now, I understand that we're not in 

compliance? 

Mr. Winkeljohn: Can we take that up under engineer's report later if you don't 

mind? 

Mr. Westbrook: Yes, that would be fine. 

Mr. Winkeljohn: Unless it's a budget question, I kind of took it as a budget angle, 

that's why we budget for the engineer. 

Mr. Westbrook: That's fine. 

Mr. Winkeljohn: Ok, are there any other budget approval questions? 

C. Consideration of Resolution #2019-02 Annual Appropriation Resolution 
Mr. Winkeljohn: Not hearing any other questions with that I believe we can close 

the public comment portion of our hearing and move on to resolution #2019-02 which is 

the annual appropriation resolution. Again , that sets the current assessment level again 

for next year, and the budget that's behind it reflects how we intend to spend it and what 

is contracted. A District can change its line items without overspending, or causing a 

shortfall throughout the year as necessary, so if something comes up, we can shift and 

adopt it, so with that I recommend approval of resolution #2019-02. 

On MOTION by Mr. Smith seconded by Mr. Drake with all in favor, 
Resolution #2019-02 the Annual Appropriation Resolution was 
approved. 

D. Consideration of Resolution #2019-03 Levy of Non Ad Valorem 
Assessments 

Mr. Winkeljohn: Now that we know how much we want to collect we need a method 

of collection which is encompassed in resolution #2019-03 which is the levy of Non Ad 

Valorem Assessments, the best deal in town, it's on your tax bill and we know how that 

works, and strongly encourage approval by motion. 
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On MOTION by Mr. Smith seconded by Mr. Drake with all in favor, 
Resolution #2019-03 levy of Non Ad Valorem Assessments was 
approved. 

E. Motion to Close the Public Hearing 

Mirada COD 

Mr. Winkeljohn: And a motion to close the public hearing on the budget would be 

in order. 

On MOTION by Mr. Smith seconded by Mr. Gabor with all in 
favor, closing the Public Hearing was approved. 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Ratification of Uniform Collection 
lnterlocal Agreement with Lee County 
Property Appraiser 

Mr. Winkeljohn : In this county we also have an annual renewal of the agreement 

with Lee County to do that collection process, and that is before you, there's no changes 

to it since the prior year that I know of but, they wouldn't accept our input regardless, so I 

request approval of that agreement by motion. 

On MOTION by Mr. Drake seconded by Mr. Gabor with all in 
favor, ratifying the Uniform Collection lnterlocal Agreement 
with Lee County Property Appraiser was approved. 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Maintenance 
Agreement with Mirada POA, Inc. 

Mr. Winkeljohn: As I was eluding to a little while ago, the footprint of this 

community really leans towards the HOA managing the day to day maintenance and we 

firmed that up and were asked to bring back a maintenance agreement with the Mirada 

Property Owners Association, so that is before you. If there are any questions, I can take 

those but, I think it's pretty straight forward how it works, and again it can be changed in 

the future should we change our plans. 

Mr. Smith: And it's fair to say that this doesn't increase costs on anyone, it's really 

just that we're agreeing with the HOA that they're going to maintain assets which we own. 
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Mr. Winkeljohn: Exactly, who's going to take care of it, and if we ever need to take 

care of it, the District always holds the right to do that. Ginger, any feedback on your 

end? 

Ms. Wald: No, I prepared the maintenance agreement, it's a standard 

maintenance agreement that we regularly prepare where the HOA is going to provide 

those services for the District itself, and if you look at exhibit A and exhibit B it specifically 

spells out what those improvements are and the services that the HOA will be providing 

for the District. 

Mr. Winkeljohn: Are there any questions? I'd ask for a motion to authorize 

execution of the agreement. 

On MOTION by Mr. Smith seconded by Mr. Drake with all in 
favor, accepting the maintenance agreement with Mirada 
POA, Inc. and authorizing the proper District officials to 
execute the document was approved. 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Staff Reports 
Mr. Winkeljohn: We're on item No. 7 of the agenda which is staff reports, and that 

would bring us to Ginger who is joining us by phone. 

A. Attorney - Discussion of 2019 Legislative Update Memorandum 
Ms. Wald : Yes, and just a quick question first Paul, did you approve resolution 

#2019-03 because my phone went out for a minute there? 

Mr. Winkeljohn: Yes. 

Ms. Wald: Ok, just checking. So, what you have in your agenda are the 2019 

legislative update from the last legislative session with the Florida Legislature. We have 

placed in this memorandum highlighting some of the laws that are now in affect that could 

affect CDDs. I want to really just point out one to you which is on the second page and 

it's the first one listed, which now is going to be providing for the electronic filing of your 

Form 1 which is the financial form that you have to file every year by July 1st, and if you 

don't get it in by July 1st, you have a little grace period until September before you start 

getting fined . What this is going to do is it's going to require everybody to do it 

electronically and so it should be an easier system. I think what's going to happen along 
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with that starting 2022, really 2023, is that you're not going to get that grace period 

anymore. So, you're going to have to be diligent in making sure you get that Form 1, this 

is the individual Supervisor's requirement, not a Board requirement, to get that done. 

Other items that are on here probably does not affect you directly as we sit here today, 

you have little blurbs there, if you want full copies of each one of those laws we are more 

than happy to provide them to you. They're really wonderful to read when you're trying 

to sleep at night because they'll knock you right out, and of course if anybody has any 

questions as to them please feel free to call myself or anyone else in my office. Thank 

you. 

Mr. Winkeljohn: Any questions for Ginger on her report? Thank you Ginger. 

B. Engineer 
Mr. Winkeljohn: Carl? 

Mr. Barraco: Two things on maintenance, I just wanted to make sure everyone is 

aware of the ownership and easement map that we prepared so if anyone needs it, we 

have it, and that does have the original intent for maintenance which now has been 

transferred to the HOA but, we tried to put it all there so that everyone in the COD knows 

what the COD owns, and where the COD easements are. 

Mr. Westbrook: And we can get a copy of that? 

Mr. Barraco: Yes sir. Do you have that? 

Mr. Winkeljohn: I'm sure I have it, I always keep it on the website. 

Mr. Barraco: And if not just ask me, I'll send you another one. 

Mr. Winkeljohn: Ok. 

Mr. Barraco: Then the only other thing I have is there was a mention of a violation. 

Mr. Hajicek: Yes, I was trying to understand that because when we were talking 

with George Kolvac he said that there was a problem with the exotic plants or that 

particular vendor, and had not been under contract since the end of 2018 but we were 

not in compliance. 

Mr. Barraco: And who is George? 

Mr. Hajicek: That's Ponds Professionals and they're the ones that have the 

contract now, which is nice, because that's for the whole water area. 
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Mr. Smith: We got a notice of noncompliance from the Water Management District 

for I think an annual monitoring report was submitted by Vincent & Associates which 

prompted an inspection from Water Management, then Water Management came out and 

found exotics in the preserve, and we found out that I guess we were not contracted to 

have any maintenance done in any of the preserves, so we contracted with George 

Kolvac, Pond Pros to come in and kind of take care of the nuisance vegetation get us 

back in compliance. 

Mr. Winkeljohn: So, it's being handled. 

Mr. Smith: Yes. 

Mr. Winkeljohn: Ok. 

Mr. Barraco: And let me take that a step further though, at the last meeting we 

talked about the water management system being certified and accepted by the South 

Florida Water Management District, and at that time on record the system will then be put 

in the name of the COD for maintenance. Until that time, it's in the permitee's hands, so 

whenever the developer is ready to certify it, we can do that. 

Mr. Smith: We've initiated that through Fitzgerald . 

Mr. Barraco: Ok, so that will be soon. 

Mr. Smith: Yes. 

Mr. Barraco: So you did the paperwork, my point is the paperwork at the South 

Florida Water Management District which is the governing agency has not been done yet, 

once that's done, then there will be another form which we'll do which formally transfers 

operation and maintenance to the COD, so it will remain in the CDD's name at the state 

level and then through another mechanism we'll have the work done, but that's not until 

we sever from the state. 

Mr. Hajicek: Well , how long does it take or what has to be done to get it back in 

compliance? 

Mr. Smith: More or less treating the exotic vegetation, and requesting a re

inspection from water management, they come out, look at it, bless it, and send a letter 

of I guess compliance back to us. 

Mr. Hajicek: Ok, George was saying that they were going to do some spraying of 

plants that are not supposed to be in there, and removal I guess of some. 
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Mr. Smith: Yes, I think he was out there doing his initial treatment. 

Mr. Hajicek: Is that what you recall Dave? 

Mr. Westbrook: Well , they were out doing some of it today. 

Mirada COD 

Mr. Smith: They were going to be back out today for I guess the application. 

Mr. Barraco: But it's highly unlikely that the District would issue the certification 

until that work is done, unless they make a mistake, they won't issue the certification . 

Mr. Hajicek: Now, there's some kind of a bond that is associated with that, that 

then would be a refund to Lennar. 

Mr. Smith: The Water Management District typically makes us post a bond to 

cover the cost of doing that work and we have to monitor it for a period of time and then 

once we achieve what they refer to as the success criteria where the area is sufficiently 

eradicated of the exotics and everything and then they return the bond but, the reason 

they ask for the bond is just in case we don't do it. Anyway, once all that work is done, 

they would release the bond back to us, but that's actually a good point, the Water 

Management District asks that for an extra level of protection for the homeowners so that 

if the developer doesn't fulfill their obligations, they have the means of doing it. They do 

the same thing with plats, whenever we record a plat we have to also post a surety bond 

to cover the entire cost of all the improvements associated with the plat times, and it 

depends on the municipality, but sometimes 110% or 130% in case the developer builds 

half the roads, and goes away. Now, Lennar is not likely to do that but, others might, and 

the county could pull the bond and finish out the plat, so the same kind of theory. 

Mr. Winkeljohn: Excellent. Does that answer your question? 

Mr. Hajicek: Yes, and let me ask another question about the plats. 

Mr. Smith: Sure. 

Mr. Hajicek: Carl, I think your company did the final plat, right? 

Mr. Barraco: Not on this one, I don't think so. 

Mr. Hajicek: No. Who did the plat? 

Mr. Smith: DeLeecy Fitzgerald probably. 

Mr. Westbrook: But they subbed it out to someone else. 

Mr. Smith: Who was the surveyor? 

Mr. Barraco: Metrone. 
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Mr. Smith: Metrone Surveyor, ok. 

Mr. Hajicek: Was Metrone the last one? 

Mr. Smith: I think so, I mean Deleecy Fitzgerald is the civil engineering company 

but they don't have an in-house surveyor, so surveyors do plats. So, we contracted with 

Deleecy, and I think Deleecy probably made an arrangement with Metrone to do the plat 

under Deleecy's supervision. 

Mr. Hajicek: Ok, well we have the Metrone plat, do you know whether or not we 

should be getting anything, because when we got the Metrone plat they said, well this is 

pretty much it, there's a few differences in measurements and so forth. 

Ms. Westbrook: I can explain that, I'm Marilyn Westbrook by the way. I know Wes 

very well from your office, so he actually helped me get the plats printed, and because 

they were Metrone's and not yours, there would be some variations in the printing 

process, and we were aware of that. 

Mr. Barraco: Ok, but as another side note, those plats are on the county's website, 

exactly as they were recorded. 

Mr. Hajicek: So, the plat that we have, we can consider that to be the accurate 

plat. 

Mr. Barraco: Absolutely, the one that was recorded in the public records is the 

controlling document. 

Mr. Hajicek: And that's the Metrone? 

Ms. Westbrook: Yes, and that's the one that Wes printed for us. 

Mr. Barraco: It would have been by Metrone, but again, you can go to Lee County 

and you can find that recorded plat, and that is the document that controls. 

Mr. Smith: And there will only be one plat, I mean Carl's company did not do a plat 

for this project, so there's only one, so the Metrone plat is the only plat that exists for the 

project, there's not any other plat. 

Mr. Hajicek: Ok thank you. 

Mr. Winkeljohn: Excellent. Anything else for our engineer? 
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C. Manager 
1) Number of Registered Voters in the District - 132 
2) Consideration of Proposed Fiscal Year 2020 Meeting Schedule 
3) Discussion of Financial Disclosure Report from the Commission on 

Ethics - everyone has filed 
Mr. Winkeljohn: Moving on, under manager's report, we always identify the 

registered voters this time of year, and you're at 132.. I don't know if you'll ever get to it, 

but once you get to 250 registered voters, that would qualify the election process to be 

on the general election through the county, until that time, any election process would be 

done by what's called a landowners process, so that's why that is reported to you. The 

other item we do annually is confirm a meeting schedule. We typically, because of the 

level of business we deal with, we list a whole slate of meetings, one a month at this time, 

this location, and this day of the month, we hold them as necessary that seems to work. 

If there are any objections to that let me know, otherwise, a motion to accept the schedule 

which can be changed at any time, would be in order. 

Mr. Smith: And that's the middle Friday of each month, and for the record that's 

the meeting schedule they're affirming, and what we'll do is, they are about every month, 

if we don't need it, we'll cancel it. It's also a bit more cost effective because we are 

required to advertise the meeting dates, so we just advertise them all at once. 

On MOTION by Mr. Drake seconded by Mr. Smith with all in 
favor, accepting the proposed Fiscal Year 2020 Meeting 
Schedule and authorizing staff to advertise was approved. 

Mr. Winkeljohn : The other item is #3 which is the financial disclosure forms, those 

of you who serve on Boards know what that is and congratulations every member has 

filed their forms. 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Financial Reports 
A. Approval of Check Run Summary 
B. Balance Sheet and Income Statement 
Mr. Winkeljohn: Item No. 8 are the financial reports, if there's any questions I can 

take them. 

Mr. Smith: Any issues to report regarding the financial reports? 
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Mr. Winkeljohn: No sir. 

Mr. Drake: I didn't see any either. 

Mr. Smith: Do you need a motion to accept them or is this just informational? 

Mr. Winkeljohn: No, I need a motion to accept those as a record. 

On MOTION by Mr. Smith seconded by Mr. Gabor with all in 
favor, the Check Run Summary and the Balance Sheet and 
Income Statement were approved . 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Supervisors Requests 
Audience Comments 

Mr. Winkeljohn: Any other questions or comments for the good of the order? 

and 

Mr. Westbrook: I have one question about the audit process using Grau & 

Associates, and I am familiar with them, the current Board that I sit on , we actually have 

like a 3 year proposal that we approved, as opposed to doing it on a yearly basis, can you 

explain if there's any advantage to doing that? 

Mr. Winkeljohn: Well, when the market shifts you get the advantage of locking 

them in for a price future, but you always engage on an annual basis regardless. So, yes 

the typical proposals come in, they go up to 5 years now, and one of the criteria you 're 

allowed to use to choose an auditor is price, there's 4 other criteria also, so when they 

rank them and I think you guys did it recently, I don't remember but, in the last 6 months 

the only respondent I got was Grau & Associates and so you have their price for 5 years, 

and if they're able to perform satisfactorily you save a big swing in the market. When 

there was a big downturn a lot of, on the fringe audit firms that don't do all COD work, that 

do kind of a mixture of government work, started bidding and we had 7 or 8 respondents 

and the price range was $12,000 to $3,000, it was big gap, so the beauty is you protect 

yourself from the market in that respect because you can always choose if it goes lower. 

Mr. Westbrook: So, if things go up, you're in good shape, if they go down, you're 

not, ok. 

Mr. Winkeljohn: You re-bid. 

Mr. Westbrook: Ok, so from the sound of it then, it's all upside. 

Mr. Winkeljohn: Right. Are there any other questions? 
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Mr. Westbrook: No. 

Mr. Winkeljohn: Alright. 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Adjournment 
Mr. Winkeljohn: I have nothing else, so just need a motion to adjourn would be in 

order. 

On MOTION by Mr. Smith seconded by Mr. Gabor with 
all in favor, the Meeting was adjourned. 

Secretary I Assistant Secretary Chairman I Vice Chairman 

14 



INSTR# 2008000114730, Doc Type EAS, Pages 4 , Recorded 04 / 30/ 2008 at 10:17 AM, 
Charlie Green, Lee County Clerk of Circuit Court, Rea . Fee $35 . 50 Deputy 
Clerk LHINSPETER 

This Instrument prepared by: 
Lee County 
Division of County Lands 
Post Office Box 398 
Fort Myers, Florida 33902-0398 

Parcel: 92 and 93 (Slope Easement) 
Project: Gladiolus Drive Widening Project, No. 4083 
STRAP No.: 33-45-24-00-00006.0020 and .002A 

SLOPE/RESTORATION EASEMENT 

This INDENTURE, made and entered into this '2-. day of A:pn I 20~between 
MIRADA REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT, LLC, formerly known as Ascot Preserve, LLC, a Florida 

Limited Liability Company, whose address Is 2235 Venetian Court, Suite 3E Naples, FL 34109, 

(Grantor), and LEE COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of Florida, whose address Is Post 

Office Box 398, Fort Myers, Florida 33902-0398, (Grantee): 

WITNESSETH: 

1. For good and valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, Grantor 

grants to the Grantee, Its successors and assigns, a slope/restoration easement situated in Lee 

County, Florida, and located and described as set forth in attached Exhibit "A" (Easement Parcel). 

2. Grantee, its successors and assigns, are granted the right, privllege, and authority to 

c911struct, replace, repair, remove, extend, and maintain a slope/restoration easement on the 

Easement Parcel to support, reinforce, and stabilize the adjacent public roadway. 

3. The Improvements that may be placed within the Easement Parcel for roadway 

slope/restoratlon· purposes are not llmlted to a particular type, style, material or design. These 

improvements may Include the use of foliage. 

4. Grantor may not construct or place any structures or foliage within the Easement Parcel. 

5. Title to the improvements constructed by the Grantee w ithin the Easement Parcel will 

remain In the Grantee, It's successor.s or assigns. 

6. Subject to any existing easements for public highways or roads, railroads, laterals, ditches, 

pipelines and electrical transmission or distribution lines and telephone and cable television lines 

covering the land herein described, Grantors covenant they are lawfully seized and possessed of the 

real property described in Exhibit "A", have good and lawful right and power to convey It, and that the 

property Is free and clear of all liens and encumbrances, except as herein stated, and accordingly, 

Granter will forever warrant and defend the title and terms to this sald easement and the quiet 

possession thereof against all claims and demands of all other entitles. 
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Slope/Restoration Easement 
Project: Gladiolus Drive Widening Project, No. 4083 

Page 2 of3 

7. Grantee has a reasonable right of access across Grantor's property for the purposes of 

reaching the Easement Parcel on either paved or unpaved surfaces. Any damage to Grantor's 

property or permitted lmprovements thereon resulting from Grantee's use of this access right will be 

restored by the Grantee, to the condition in which it existed prior to the damage. 

8. This easement runs with the land and is binding upon the parties, their successors and 

assigns. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Granter has caused this document to be signed on the date first above 

written. 

TWO SEPARATE WITNESSES: 

1st Witness Signature 

Rob act r f<e sh -=
Printed name of 1st Witness 

(J~~ 
2nd Witness Signature 

.flu i ~a.., L · t8 r 1;:; ~O'f.r 
Printed name of 2nd Witness 

Mirada Real Estate Development, LLC, 
formerly known as Ascot Preserve, LLC, 
a Florida Limited Liability Company 

Schiffman, Managing Member of 
MP, LLC, a Florida Limited Llabllity 

Company, Managing Member 

Acquisition approved by the lee COunty Board 
of commLuioners action on ,4P le' 29, Z 00 CO 

and '9C'J>~Of the board by 
~ on Al'£, so/ eoo~ 

ln....1.ac....:~=dance:;.i;.;::;a,c:;;Wttll..;...;,~B~S 200801-j(p ~ 
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STATE OF 

COUNTY OF 

The foregoing instrument was ackn.owledged before me this :2.. day of Ap; 1 L 

20.n_, by Alan Schiffman, Managing Member of BBMP. LLC. a Florida Limited Liability Company, 

Managing Member of Mirada Real Estate Development. LLC. formedY known as Ascot Preserve. LLC. 

a Florida Limited Liabll!ty Company on behalf of the company He~onalfy kn~me or who 

has produced as Identification. 
(type of ldentlflcatlon) 

S:\POOL\001'\Gladiolus #4083\Legal\92-93 SLOPE·RESTORA110N EASEMENT.do<:< revised 11127/07 
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Exhibit A 
(Slope Easement) 

The West ten feet (10') of the East sixty feet (60') of: 

A tract or parcel of land in Section 33, Township 45 South, Range 24 East, Lee 
County, Florida, more particularly described as follows: 

Commence at the southwest corner of Section 33, Township 45 South, Range 24 
East; thence N00°00'45'W along the west line of the southwest one quarter of 
sa id Section 33, for 1324.73 feet to the northwest corner of the south one half of 
the southwest one quarter of said Section 33; thence NB9°55'20E for 1309.92 
feet along the north line of the south one half of the southwest one quarter of said 
section 33; thence N00°01 '22'W for 498.73 feet to the point of beginning of the 
herein described parcel of land; thence. continue N00°01'22'W for 498.73 feet; 
thence N89°56'30'E for 1310.42 feet to an intersection with a line parallel with 
and 25 feet west of as measured at right angles to the east line of the southwest 
one quarter of said Section 33, being the west right of way line of Bass Road; 
thence S00°01 '22"E along said west right of way line for 498.51 feet; thence 
S89°55'55'W for 1310.42 feet to the point of beginning. 

AND 

The West ten feet (1 O') of the East sixty feet (60') of: 

A tract or parcel of land in Section 33, Township 45 South, Range 24 East, Lee 
County, Florida, more particularly described as follows: 

Commence at the southwest corner of Section 33, Township 45 South, Range 24 
East; thence N00°00'45'W along the west line of the southwest one quarter of 
said Section 33, for 1324.73 feet to the northwest corner of the south one half of 
the southwest one quarter of said Section 33; thence N89°55'20E for 1309.92 
feet along the north line of the south one half of the southwest one quarter of said 
section 33 to the point of beginning of the herein described parcel of land; thence 
continue along said north line N89b55'20'E for 1310.42 feet to an intersection 
with a line parallel with and 25 feet west of as measured at right angles to the 
east line of the southwest one quarter of said Section 33, being the west right of 
way line of Bass Road; thence N00°01 '22'W along said west right of way line for 
498.51 feet; thence S89°55'55'W for 1310.42 feet; thence S00°01 '22"E for 
498.73 feet to the point of beginning. 

S:IPOOL\DOT\Glad!olus #4063\Legal\92-93 SE Exhibit A.doc 



Grau & Associates 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

September 6, 2019 

Board of Supervisors 
Attn: Maggie Phillips 
Mirada Community Development District 
5385 N. Nob Hill Road 
Sunrise, FL 33351 

951 Yamato Road • Suite 280 
Boca Raton, Florida 33431 
(561) 994-9299 • {800) 299-4 728 
Fax (561) 994-5823 
www.graucpa.com 

We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are to provide Mirada Community Development District, 
Lee County, Florida (the "District") for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019. We will audit the financial statements 
of the governmental activities and each major fund, including the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the basic financial statements of Mirada Community Development District for the fiscal year ended 
September 30, 2019. In addition, we will examine the District's compliance with the requirements of Section 218.415 
Florida Statutes. This letter serves to renew our agreement and establish the terms and fee for the 2019 audit. 

Accounting standards generally accepted in the United States of America provide for certain required supplementary 
information (RSI), such as management's discussion and analysis (MD&A), to supplement the District's basic financial 
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial 
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. As part of our engagement, we will apply 
certain limited procedures to the District's RSI in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. These limited procedures will consist of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing 
the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We will not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

The following RSI is required by generally accepted accounting principles and will be subjected to certain limited 
procedures, but will not be audited: 

1. Management's discussion and analysis 
2. Budgetary comparison schedule 

Audit Objectives 

The objective of our audit is the expression of opinions as to whether your financial statements are fairly presented, in 
all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and to report on the fairness of 
the supplementary information referred to in the second paragraph when considered in relation to the financial 
statements as a whole. Our audit will be conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States, and will include tests of the accounting records of the District and 
other procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express such opinions. We will issue a written report upon 
completion of our audit of the District's financial statements. We cannot provide assurance that an unmodified opinion 
will be expressed. Circumstances may arise in which it is necessary for us to modify our opinion or add emphasis-of
matter or other-matter paragraphs. If our opinion on the financial statements is other than unmodified , we will discuss 
the reasons with you in advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the audit or are unable to form or have 
not formed an opinion, we may decline to express an opinion or issue a report, or may withdraw from this engagement. 

We will also provide a report (that does not include an opinion) on internal control related to the financial statements 
and compliance with the provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which 
could have a material effect on the financial statements as required by Government Auditing Standards. The report on 
internal control and on compliance and other matters will include a paragraph that states (1) that the purpose of the 
report is solely to describe the scope of testing of internal control and compliance, and the results of that testing, and 
not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control on compliance, and (2) that the report is 
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District's 
internal control and compliance. The paragraph will also state that the report is not suitable for any other purpose. If 
during our audit we become aware that the District is subject to an audit requirement that is not encompassed in the 
terms of this engagement, we will communicate to management and those charged with governance that an audit in 
accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the standards for financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards may not satisfy the relevant legal, regulatory, or contractual requirements. 
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Examination Objective 

The objective of our examination is the expression of an opinion as to whether the District is in compliance with Florida 
Statute 218.415 in accordance with Rule 10.556(10) of the Auditor General of the State of Florida. Our examination will 
be conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants and will include tests of your records and other procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express 
such an opinion. We will issue a written report upon completion of our examination of the District's compliance. The 
report will include a statement that the report is intended solely for the information and use of management, those 
charged with governance, and the Florida Auditor General, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone 
other than these specified parties. We cannot provide assurance that an unmodified opinion will be expressed. 
Circumstances may arise in which it is necessary for us to modify our opinion or add emphasis-of-matter or other
matter paragraphs. If our opinion on the District's compliance is other than unmodified, we will discuss the reasons with 
you in advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the examination or are unable to form or have not formed 
an opinion, we may decline to express an opinion or issue a report, or may withdraw from this engagement. 

Management Responsibilities 

Management is responsible for the financial statements and all accompanying information as well as all representations 
contained therein. Further, management is responsible for compliance with Florida Statute 218.415 and will provide us 
with the information required for the examination. The accuracy and completeness of such information is also 
management's responsibility. As part of the audit, we will assist with preparation of your financial statements and related 
notes in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles based on information provided by you. These 
nonaudit services do not constitute an audit under Government Auditing Standards and such services will not be 
conducted in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. You agree to assume all management responsibil ities 
relating to the financial statements and related notes and any other nonaudit services we provide. You will be required 
to acknowledge in the management representation letter our assistance with preparation of the financial statements 
and related notes and that you have reviewed and approved the financial statements and related notes prior to their 
issuance and have accepted responsibility for them. In addition, you will be required to make certain representations 
regarding compliance with Florida Statute 218.415 in the management representation letter. Further, you agree to 
oversee the nonaudit services by designating an individual, preferably from senior management, who possesses 
suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; evaluate the adequacy and results of those services; and accept responsibility 
for them. 

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal controls, including evaluating and 
monitoring ongoing activities, to help ensure that appropriate goals and objectives are met; following laws and 
regulations; and ensuring that management is reliable and financial information is reliable and properly reported. 
Management is also responsible for implementing systems designed to achieve compliance with applicable laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements. You are also responsible for the selection and application of accounting 
principles, for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements and all accompanying information in 
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, and for compliance with applicable laws and regulations 
and the provisions of contracts and grant agreements. 

Management is also responsible for making all financial records and related information available to us and for the 
accuracy and completeness of that information. You are also responsible for providing us with (1) access to all 
information of which you are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, 
(2) additional information that we may request for the purpose of the audit, and (3) unrestricted access to persons within 
the government from whom we determine it necessary to obtain audit evidence. 

Your responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and for confirming to 
us in the written representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by us during the 
current engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, 
to the financial statements taken as a whole. As part of our engagement, we may propose standard adjusting, or 
correcting journal entries to your financial statements. You are responsible for reviewing the entries and understanding 
the nature of the proposed entries and the impact they have on the financial statements. 

You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect fraud, and for 
informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the government involving (1) management, (2) employees 
who have significant roles in internal control, and (3) others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial 
statements. Your responsibilities include informing us of your knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud 
affecting the government received in communications from employees, former employees, grantors, regulators, or 
others. In addition, you are responsible for identifying and ensuring that the government complies with applicable laws, 
regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants and for taking timely and appropriate steps to remedy fraud and 
noncompliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts or grant agreements, or abuse that we report. 

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a process for tracking the status of audit findings and 
recommendations. Management is also responsible for identifying for us previous financial audits, attestation 
engagements, performance audits or other studies related to the objectives discussed in the Audit Objectives section 
of this letter. This responsibility includes relaying to us corrective actions taken to add ress significant findings and 
recommendations resulting from those audits, attestation engagements, performance audits, or other studies. You are 
also responsible for providing management's views on our current findings, conclusions, and recommendations, as well 
as your planned corrective actions, for the report, and for the timing and format for providing that information. 
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With regard to using the audit's report, you understand that you must obtain our prior written consent to reproduce or 
use our report in bond offering official statements or other documents. 

With regard to the electronic dissemination of audited financial statements, including financial statements published 
electronically on your website, you understand that electronic sites are a means to distribute information and, therefore, 
we are not required to read the information contained in these sites or to consider the consistency of other information 
in the electronic site with the original document. 

Audit Procedures-General 

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements; therefore, our audit will involve judgment about the number of transactions to be examined and the areas 
to be tested. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. We will plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable rather than absolute assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether from (1) errors, (2) fraudulent financial reporting, (3) 
misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental regulations that are attributable to the government 
or to acts by management or employees acting on behalf of the government. Because the determination of abuse is 
subjective, Government Auditing Standards do not expect auditors to provide reasonable assurance of detecting abuse. 

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, combined with the inherent limitations of internal control, and because 
we will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is a risk that material misstatements may exist and 
not be detected by us, even though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with U.S. generally 
accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards. In addition, an audit is not designed to detect 
immaterial misstatements or violations of laws or governmental regulations that do not have a direct and material effect 
on the financial statements. Our responsibility as auditors is limited to the period covered by our audit and does not 
extend to later periods for which we are not engaged as auditors. 

Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the accounts, and 
may include tests of the physical existence of inventories, and direct confirmation of receivables and certain other 
assets and liabilities by correspondence with selected individuals, funding sources, creditors, and financial institutions. 
We will request written representations from your attorneys as part of the engagement, and they may bill you for 
responding to this inquiry. At the conclusion of our audit, we will require certain written representations from you about 
your responsibilities for the financial statements; compliance with laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements; 
and other responsibilities required by generally accepted auditing standards. 

Audit Procedures-Internal Controls 

Our audit will include obtaining an understanding of the District and its environment, including internal control, sufficient 
to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements and to design the nature, timing, and extent of 
further audit procedures. Tests of controls may be performed to test the effectiveness of certain controls that we 
consider relevant to preventing and detecting errors and fraud that are material to the financial statements and to 
preventing and detecting misstatements resulting from illegal acts and other noncompliance matters that have a direct 
and material effect on the financial statements. Our tests, if performed, will be less in scope than would be necessary 
to render an opinion on internal control and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed in our report on internal control 
issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards. 

An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify significant deficiencies or material 
weaknesses. However, during the audit, we will communicate to management and those charged with governance 
internal control related matters that are required to be communicated under AICPA professional standards and 
Government Auditing Standards. 

Audit Procedures-Compliance 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, 
we will perform tests of the District's compliance with the provisions of applicable laws, regulations, contracts, 
agreements, and grants, if applicable. However, the objective of our audit will not be to provide an opinion on overall 
compliance and we will not express such an opinion in our report on compliance issued pursuant to Government 
Auditing Standards. 

Audit Administration, Fees, and Other 

We understand that your employees will prepare all confirmations we request and will locate any documents selected 
by us for testing. 

The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Grau & Associates and constitutes confidential 
information. However, subject to applicable laws and regulations, audit documentation and appropriate individuals will 
be made available upon request and in a timely manner to a cognizant or oversight agency or its designee, a federal 
agency providing direct or indirect funding, or the U.S. Government Accountability Office for purposes of a quality review 
of the audit, to resolve audit findings, or to carry out oversight responsibilities. We will notify you of any such request. 



Mirada Community Development District Page4 

If requested, access to such audit documentation will be provided under the supervision of Grau & Associates 
personnel. Furthermore, upon request, we may provide copies of selected audit documentation to the aforementioned 
parties. These parties may intend, or decide, to distribute the copies or information contained therein to others, including 
other governmental agencies. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the parties acknowledge that various documents 
reviewed or produced during the conduct of the audit may be public records under Florida law. The District agrees to 
notify Grau & Associates of any public record request it receives that involves audit documentation. 

Furthermore, Grau & Associates shall, pursuant to and in accordance with Section 119.0701, Florida Statutes, comply 
with the public records laws of the State of Florida, and specifically shall: 

a. Keep and maintain public records required by the District to perform the services or work set forth in this 
Agreement; and 

b. Upon the request of the District's custodian of public records, provide the District with a copy of the requested 
records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time at a cost that does not exceed 
the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, or as otherwise provided by law; and 

c. Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure 
requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of the contract term and following 
completion of the Agreement if Grau & Associates does not transfer the records to the District; and 

d. Upon completion of the Agreement, transfer, at no cost to the District, all public records in possession of the 
Auditor or keep and maintain public records required by the District to perform the service or work provided 
for in this Agreement. If the Auditor transfers all public records to the District upon completion of the 
Agreement, the Auditor shall destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt 
from public disclosure requirements. If the Auditor keeps and maintains public records upon completion of the 
Agreement, the Auditor shall meet all applicable requirements for retaining public records. All records stored 
electronically must be provided to the District, upon request from the District's custodian of public records, in 
a format that is compatible with the information technology systems of the District. 

Auditor acknowledges that any requests to inspect or copy public records relating to this Agreement must be made 
directly to the District pursuant to Section 119.0701 (3), Florida Statutes. If notified by the District of a public records 
request for records not in the possession of the District but in possession of the Auditor, the Auditor shall provide such 
records to the District or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time. Auditor acknowledges 
that should Auditor fail to provide the public records to the District within a reasonable time, Auditor may be subject to 
penalties pursuant to Section 119.10, Florida Statutes. 

IF GRAU & ASSOCIATES HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA 
STATUTES, TO ITS DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, CONTACT THE 
PUBLIC RECORDS CUSTODIAN AT: 

GMS-SF, LLC 
5385 N NOB HILL ROAD 
SUNRISE, FL 33351 
TELEPHONE: 954-721-8681 

Our fee for these services will not exceed $3,500 for the September 30, 2019 audit, unless there is a change in activity 
by the District which results in additional audit work or if Bonds are issued. 

We will complete the audit within prescribed statutory deadlines, which requires the District to submit its annual audit 
to the Auditor General no later than nine (9) months after the end of the audited fiscal year, with the understanding that 
your employees will provide information needed to perform the audit on a timely basis. 

The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of five years after the report release date. 
If we are aware that a federal awarding agency or auditee is contesting an audit finding, we will contact the party(ies) 
contesting the audit finding for guidance prior to destroying the audit documentation. 

Our invoices for these fees will be rendered each month as work progresses and are payable on presentation. Invoices 
will be submitted in sufficient detail to demonstrate compliance with the terms of this agreement. In accordance with 
our firm policies, work may be suspended if your account becomes 60 days or more overdue and may not be resumed 
until your account is paid in full. If we elect to terminate our services for nonpayment, our engagement will be deemed 
to have been completed upon written notification of termination, even if we have not completed our report. You will be 
obligated to compensate us for all time expended and to reimburse us for all out-of-pocket costs through the date of 
termination. The above fee is based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel and the assumption that 
unexpected circumstances will not be encountered during the audit. If significant additional time is necessary, we will 
discuss it with you and arrive at a new fee estimate. 

This agreement may be renewed each year thereafter subject to the mutual agreement by both parties to all terms and 
fees. The fee for each annual renewal will be agreed upon separately. 
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We wi ll provide you with a copy of our most recent external peer review report and any letter of comment, and any 
subsequent peer review reports and letters of comment received during the period of the contract. Our 2016 peer review 
report accompanies this letter. 

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to Mirada Community Development District and believe this letter 
accurately summarizes the significant terms of our engagement. If you have any questions, please let us know. If you 
agree with the terms of our engagement as described in this letter, please sign the enclosed copy and return it to us. 

Very truly yours, 

Grau & Associates 

Antonio J. Grau 

RESPONSE: 

This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of Mirada Community Development District. 

By: 

Title: 

Date: 



_AICPA} 

PEER REVIEW PROGRAM 
is proud to present this 

Certificate of Recognition 
to 

Grau & Associates 

For having a system of quality control for its accounting and auditing practice in effect for the year 
ended June 30, 2016 which has been designed to meet the requirements of the quality control standards 

for an accounting and auditing-practice established by the AICPA and which was complied with during the year 
then ended to provide the firm with reasonable assurance of conforming with professional" standards. 

~~ 
Anita Fo~hair 

AJCPA Peer Review .Board 

2016 
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08/22/19 

09/17/19 

11/18/19 

Total 

Mirada 
Community Development District 

Check Run Summary 

December 13, 2019 

Check Numbers 

337-340 

341-343 

344-348 

Amount 

$2,866.49 

$7,929.23 

$6,831.65 

$17,627.37 



AP300R YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER RUN 12/03/19 PAGE 1 
*** CHECK DATES 07/20/2019 - 11/30/2019 *** MIRADA - GENERAL FUND 

BANK A MIRADA - GENERAL 

CHECK VEND# ..... INVOICE ........ EXPENSED TO... VENDOR NAME 
DATE DATE INVOICE YRMO DPT ACCT# SUB SUBCLASS 

9/17/19 00015 

8/22/19 00009 

8/22/19 00002 

8/22/19 00006 

8/22/19 00005 

9/17/19 00013 

9/17/19 00006 

9/17/19 00015 

6/03/19 18314 201909 310-51300-32200 
AUDIT FYE 9/30/2018 

GRAU & ASSOCIATES 

7/31/19 157498 201907 310-51300-31500 
SERVICE THRU 7/31/2019 

BILLING, COCHRAN, LYLES, MAURO & 

7/30/19 66280327 201907 310-51300-42000 
SERVICE THRU 07/30/2019 

8/01/19 

8/01/19 

8/01/19 

8/01/19 

139 
AUG 

139 
AUG 

139 
AUG 

139 
AUG 

FED EX 

201908 310-51300-34000 
2019 MGMT FEES 

201908 310-51300-31300 
2019 DISSEMINATION 

201908 310-51300-35101 
2019 WEB ADM 

201908 310-51300-42500 
2019 COPIES 

GMS-SO FLORIDA, LLC 

7/31/19 00026954 201907 310-51300-48000 
NOTICE OF PH 7/17-24/19 

THE NEWS-PRESS MEDIA GROUP 

9/16/19 9687 201909 300-15500-10000 
FY2020 LIAB INS 

EGIS INSURANCE ADVISORS, LLC 

9/01/19 

9/01/19 

9/01/19 

9/01/19 

9/01/19 

9/01/19 

140 
SEPT 

140 
SEPT 

140 
SEPT 

140 
SEPT 

140 
SEPT 

140 
SEPT 

201909 310-51300-34000 
2019 MGMT FEES 

201909 310-51300-31300 
2019 DISSEMINATION 

201909 310-51300-35101 
2019 WEB ADM 

201909 310-51300-51000 
2019 OFFICE SUPPLIES 

201909 310-51300-42000 
2019 POSTAGE 

201909 310-51300-42500 
2019 COPIES 

GMS-SO FLORIDA, LLC 

6/03/19 18314 201909 310-51300-32200 
AUDIT FYE 09302018 

GRAU & ASSOCIATES 

MIRA MIRADA MPHILLIPS 

STATUS AMOUNT .... CHECK ..... 
AMOUNT # 

v 2,400.00-

2,400.00-000331 

* 500.00 

500.00 000337 

* 63.49 

63.49 000338 
- - - - - - - - - -

* 1,833.33 

* 208.33 

* 41. 67 

* 1. 65 

2,084.98 000339 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

* 218.02 

218.02 000340 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

* 5,750.00 

5,750.00 000341 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

* 1,833.33 

* 208.33 

* 41. 67 

* 15.00 

* 1. 00 

* 79.90 

2,179.23 000342 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

* 2,400.00 

2,400.00 000343 



AP300R YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER RUN 12/03/19 PAGE 2 
*** CHECK DATES 07/20/2019 - 11/30/2019 *** MIRADA - GENERAL FUND 

BANK A MIRADA - GENERAL 

CHECK VEND# ..... INVOICE ........ EXPENSED TO... VENDOR NAME 
DATE DATE INVOICE YRMO DPT ACCT# SUB SUBCLASS 

11/18/19 00009 8/31/19 158198 201908 310-51300-31500 
SERVICE THRU 8/31/2019 

9/30/19 158618 201909 310-51300-31500 
SERVICE THRU 9/30/2019 

BILLING, COCHRAN, LYLES, MAURO & 

11/18/19 00003 10/01/19 74423 201910 310-51300-54000 
FY2020 DISTRICT FEES 

DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY 

11/18/19 00006 

11/18/19 00018 

10/01/19 

10/01/19 

10/01/19 

10/01/19 

10/01/19 

10/01/19 

11/01/19 

11/01/19 

11/01/19 

11/01/19 

141 
OCT 

141 
OCT 

141 
OCT 

141 
OCT 

141 
OCT 

141 
OCT 

142 
NOV 

142 
NOV 

142 
NOV 

142 
NOV 

201910 310-51300-34000 
2019 MGMT FEES 

201910 310-51300-31300 
2019 DISSEMINATION 

201910 310-51300-35101 
2019 WEB ADM 

201910 310-51300-51000 
2019 OFFICE SUPPLIES 

201910 310-51300-42000 
2019 POSTAGE 

201910 310-51300-42500 
2019 COPIES 

201911 310-51300-34000 
2019 MGMT FEES 

201911 310-51300-31300 
2019 DISSEMINATION 

201911 310-51300-35101 
2019 WEB ADM 

201911 310-51300-42500 
2019 COPIES 

GMS-SO FLORIDA, LLC 

11/18/19 11182019 201911 300-20700-10100 
TXFER TAX RCPTS 11/18/19 

MIRADA CDD 

11/18/19 00005 9/30/19 00028163 201909 310-51300-48000 
NOT OF MTNG DATES 2020 

10/31/19 00029324 201910 310-51300-48000 
NOT OF LO & REG MTNG 

THE NEWS-PRESS MEDIA GROUP 

TOTAL FOR BANK A 

STATUS 

* 

* 

* 

* 

* 

* 

* 

* 

* 

* 

* 

* 

* 

* 

* 

* 

TOTAL FOR REGISTER 

MIRA MIRADA MPHILLIPS 

AMOUNT .... CHECK ..... 
AMOUNT # 

800.00 

500.00 

1,300.00 000344 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

175.00 

175.00 000345 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

1,888.33 

208.33 

83.33 

4.55 

4.45 

24.90 

1,888.33 

208.33 

83.33 

1. 20 

4,395.08 000346 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

153.90 

234.47 

573.20 

17,627.37 

17,627.37 

153.90 000347 

807.67 000348 



TAL ASSESSMENT LEVY 

DATE DESCRIPTION GROSS AMOUNT DISC/(PENALTY) 

11/6/2018 DIST#l $3,087.98 $123.52 

11/25/2018 DIST#2 $21,615.86 $864.64 

12/14/2018 DIST#3 $89,551.42 $3,582.08 

12/28/2018 DIST#4 $88,007.43 $2,640.24 

01/09/19 DIST#4 $1,543.99 $46.32 
02/15/19 DIST#6 $4,631.97 $910.96 

05/15/19 DIST#9 $1,543.99 $46.32 

10/15/19 INT $0.00 $0.00 

10/30/19 EXCESS FEES $0.00 $0.00 

I TOTAL $209,982.64 $8,214.08 

Assessed on Roll: 

MIRADA 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Special Assessment Receipts 

Fiscal Year Ending September 30, 2019 

COMMISSIONS INTEREST NET RECEIPTS 

$0.00 $0.00 $2,964.46 

$98.60 $0.00 $20,652.62 

$98.60 $0.00 $85,870.74 
$0.00 $0.00 $85,367.19 
$0.00 $0.00 $1,497.67 
$0.00 $0.00 $3,721.01 

$0.00 $0.00 $1,590.31 

$0.00 $159.26 $159.26 

($74.69) $0.00 $74.69 

$122.51 $159.26 $201,897 .95 

YTD % collected 

YTD Gross collected 

Outstanding assessments 

Discount/(Penalty) 

Commsion 

Interest 

$71,844.72 $138,137.92 $ 209,982.64 

ASSESSED THROUGH COUNTY 

34.21% 65.79% 100.00% 

001-36300.10000 021.36300.10000 

O&M Portion DSF Portion Total 

$1,014.28 $1,950.18 $2,964.46 

$7,066.21 $13,586.41 $20,652.62 

$29,380.33 $56,490.41 $85,870.74 

$29,208.04 $56,159.15 $85,367.19 
$512.42 $985.25 $1,497.67 

$1,273.13 $2,447.88 $3,721.01 

$544.12 $1,046.19 $1,590.31 

$54.49 $104.77 $159.26 

$25.55 $49.14 $74.69 

$69,078.58 $132,819.37 $201,897.95 

100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 

$71,844.72 $138,137.92 $209,982.64 

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

$2,810.41 $5,403.67 $8,214.08 

$41.92 $80.59 $122.51 
$54.49 $104.77 $159.26 



ASSETS: 
Cash 
Assessments Receivable 
Series 2016 
Investment - Reserve 
Investment - Interest 
Investment - Revenue 
Investment - Principal 
Investment - Construction 
Prepaid Expenditure 

TOT AL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES: 
Accounts Payable 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

FUND BALANCES: 

Restricted: 
Debt Service 
Capital Projects 

Unassigned: 

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 

Mirada 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

COMBINED BALANCE SHEET 
September 30, 2019 

Major Funds 

Debt 

General Service 

$71,325 
$80 $154 

$66,906 
$3 

$57,919 
$2 

$5,750 

$77,155 $124,984 

$1,534 

$1,534 $0 

$124,984 

$75,621 

$75,621 $124,984 

TOTAL LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCES $77,155 $124,984 
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Total 

Capital Governmental 

Projects Funds 

$71,325 
$234 

$66,906 
$3 

$57,919 
$2 

$539,750 $539,750 
$5,750 

$539,750 $741,890 

$1,534 

$0 $1,534 

$124,984 
$539,750 $539,750 

$75,621 

$539,750 $740,355 

$539,750 $741,890 



Mirada 
Community Development District 

GENERAL FUND 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

For the Period Ended September 30, 2019 

ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL 
DESCRIPTION BUDGET THRU 09/30/19 THRU 09/30/19 VARIANCE 

REVENUES: 

Special Assessments $67,534 $67,534 $69,079 $1,545 
Direct Assessments $15,891 $15,891 $5,756 ($10,134) 

TOTAL REVENUES $83,425 $83,425 $74,835 ($8,590) 

EXPENDITURES: 

ADM/NISTRA TIVE: 

Engineering Fees $2,500 $2,500 $3,987 ($1,487) 
Attorney Fees $10,000 $10,000 $6,825 $3,175 
Dissemination $2,500 $2,500 $2,500 $0 
Audit Fees $3,400 $3,400 $3,400 $0 
Trustee Fees $4,500 $4,500 $1,500 $3,000 
Management Fees $22,000 $22,000 $22,000 $0 
Website Compliance $500 $500 $500 $0 
Telephone $50 $50 $3 $47 
Postage $150 $150 $292 ($142) 
Insurance $6,171 $6,171 $5,610 $561 
Printing & Binding $500 $500 $168 $332 
Legal Advertising $2,400 $2,400 $452 $1,948 
Other Current Charges $500 $500 $610 ($110) 
Office Supplies $100 $100 $36 $64 
Dues, Licenses, Subscriptions $175 $175 $175 $0 
Contingency $500 $500 $0 $500 
Operating Reserves $29,935 $29,935 $0 $29,935 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $85,881 $85,881 $48,058 $37,823 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures ($2,456) {$2,456} $26,777 $29,234 

Fund Balance - Beginning $18,347 $48,843 

Fund Balance - Ending $15,891 $75,621 
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Mirada 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

DEBT SERVICE FUND 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 

For the Period Ended September 30, 2019 

DESCRIPTION 

REVENUES: 

Special Assessments 
Direct Assessments 
Interest Income 

TOTAL REVENUES 

EXPENDITURES: 

Interest Expense - 11/01 
Interest Expense - 05/01 
Principal - 05/01 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 

FUND BALANCE - Beginning 

FUND BALANCE - Ending 

ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET 
BUDGET 

$129,850 
$30,553 

$350 

$160,753 

$46,875 
$46,875 
$36,000 

$129,751 

$31,002 

$25,254 

$56,256 
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THRU 09/30/19 

$129,850 
$30,553 

$350 

$160,753 

$46,875 
$46,875 
$36,000 

$129,751 

$31,002 

ACTUAL 
THRU 09/30/19 

$132,819 
$11,068 

$2,923 

$146,810 

$46,875 
$46,875 
$36,000 

$129,751 

$17,060 

$107,924 

$124,984 

VARIANCE 

$2,970 
($19,485) 

$2,573 

($13,942) 

$0 
$0 
$0 

$0 

{$13,942} 



Mirada 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 

For the Period Ended September 30, 2019 

REVENUES: 

Interest Income 

TOTAL REVENUES 

EXPENDITURES: 

Capital Outlay 
Cost of Issuance 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 

FUND BALANCE - Beginning 

FUND BALANCE - Ending 

ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL 
BUDGET THRU 09/30/19 THRU 09/30/19 

$0 $0 $11,613 

$0 $0 $11,613 

$0 $0 $0 
$0 $0 $0 

$0 $0 $0 

$0 $0 $11,613 

$0 $528,137 

$0 $539,750 
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VARIANCE 

$11,613 

$11,613 

$0 
$0 

$0 

$11,613 



Mirada 
Community Development District 
Series 2016 Special Assessment Bonds 

1. Recap of Capital Project Fund Activity Through September 30, 2019 
Opening Balance in Construction Account 

Source of Funds: 

Use of Funds: 
Disbursements: 

Interest Earned 
Developer Proceeds 
lnterfund Transfer ln/(Out) 

Roadways Improvements 
Stormwater Management 
Water Distribution System 
Streetlighting & Landcscaping 
Professional Fees 
COi 

Adjusted Balance in Construction Account at September 30, 2019 

2. Funds Available For Construction at September 30, 2019 
Book Balance of Construction Fund September 30, 2019 

Construction Funds available at September 30, 2019 

3. Investments - Regions Bank 

September 30, 2019 
Construction Fund: 

~ 
Overnight 

Yield 
0.43% 

Due 

$539,750.32 

$539,750.32 

Maturity 
$539,750.32 

$1,985,075.00 

$22,390.60 
$0.00 

($1.27) 

($609,769.12) 
($627,965.65) 

$0.00 
$0.00 

($18,107.17) 
($211,872.07) 

$539,750.32 

Principal 
$539, 750.32 

Contracts Payable $0.00 
---..,...----'---

Balance at 09/30/2019 $539,750.32 
============ 



----,--

ASSETS: 
Cash 
Assessments Receivable 
Series 2016 
Investment - Reserve 
Investment - Interest 
Investment - Revenue 
Investment - Principal 
Investment - Construction 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES: 
Accounts Payable 
Due to Other Funds 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

FUND BALANCES: 

Restricted: 
Debt Service 
Capital Projects 

Unassigned: 

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 

Mirada 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

COMBINED BALANCE SHEET 
October 31, 2019 

Major Funds 

Debt 

General Service 

$71,523 
$154 

$65,035 
$46,209 
$13,788 

$2 

$71,523 $125,189 

$4,497 
$154 

$4,650 $0 

$125,189 

$66,873 

$66,873 $125,189 

TOTAL LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCES $71,523 $125,189 
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Total 

Capital Governmental 

Projects Funds 

$71,523 
$154 

$65,035 
$46,209 
$13,788 

$2 
$540,635 $540,635 

$540,635 $737,347 

$4,497 
$154 

$0 $4,650 

$125,189 
$540,635 $540,635 

$66,873 

$540,635 $732,696 

$540,635 $737,347 



Community Development District 
GENERAL FUND 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 
For the Period Ended October 31, 2019 

ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL 
DESCRIPTION BUDGET THRU 10/31/19 THRU 10/31/19 VARIANCE 

REVENUES: 

Special Assessments $67,534 $0 $0 $0 

TOTAL REVENUES $67,534 $0 $0 $0 

EXPENDITURES: 

ADMINISTRATIVE: 

Engineering Fees $2,500 $208 $0 $208 
Attorney Fees $10,000 $833 $0 $833 
Dissemination $2,500 $208 $208 $0 
Audit Fees $3,400 $0 $0 $0 
Trustee Fees $1,500 $0 $0 $0 
Management Fees $22,660 $1,888 $1,888 $0 
Website Compliance $1,000 $83 $83 ($0) 
Telephone $50 $4 $0 $4 
Postage $250 $21 $4 $16 
Insurance $6,000 $6,000 $5,750 $250 
Printing & Binding $500 $42 $25 $17 
Legal Advertising $2,400 $200 $573 ($373) 
Other Current Charges $600 $50 $36 $14 
Office Supplies $100 $8 $5 $4 
Dues, Licenses, Subscriptions $175 $175 $175 $0 
Contingency $500 $42 $0 $42 
Operating Reserves $13,399 $1,117 $0 $1,117 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $67,534 $10,880 $8,748 $2,132 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures $0 {$10,880} ($8,748) $2,132 

Fund Balance - Beginning $0 $75,621 

Fund Balance - Ending $0 $66,873 
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Mirada 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

DEBT SERVICE FUND 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 

For the Period Ended October 31, 2019 

DESCRIPTION 

REVENUES: 

Special Assessments 
Direct Assessments 
Interest Income 

TOTAL REVENUES 

EXPENDITURES: 

Interest Expense - 11/01 
Interest Expense - 05/01 
Principal - 05/01 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 

FUND BALANCE - Beginning 

FUND BALANCE - Ending 

ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET 
BUDGET 

$129,850 
$0 

$750 

$130,600 

$46,209 
$46,209 
$38,000 

$130,418 

$182 

$58,387 

$58,569 
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THRU 10/31/19 

$0 
$0 

$63 

$63 

$0 
$0 
$0 

$0 

$63 

ACTUAL 
THRU 10/31/19 

$0 
$0 

$205 

$205 

$0 
$0 
$0 

$0 

$205 

$124,984 

$125,189 

VARIANCE 

$0 
$0 

$142 

$142 

$0 
$0 
$0 

$0 

$142 



Mirada 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 

For the Period Ended October 31, 2019 

REVENUES: 

Interest Income 

TOTAL REVENUES 

EXPENDITURES: 

Capital Outlay 
Cost of Issuance 

TOT AL EXPENDITURES 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 

FUND BALANCE - Beginning 

FUND BALANCE - Ending 

ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL 
BUDGET THRU 10/31/19 THRU 10/31/19 

$0 

$0 

$0 
$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

Page4 

$0 

$0 

$0 
$0 

$0 

$0 

$885 

$885 

$0 
$0 

$0 

$885 

$539,750 

$540,635 

VARIANCE 

$885 

$885 

$0 
$0 

$0 

$885 



Mirada 
Community Development District 
Series 2016 Special Assessment Bonds 

1. Recap of Capital Project Fund Activity Through October 31, 2019 
Opening Balance in Construction Account 

Source of Funds: 

Use of Funds: 
Disbursements: 

Interest Earned 
Developer Proceeds 
lnterfund Transfer In/( Out) 

Roadways Improvements 
Stormwater Management 
Water Distribution System 
Streetlighting & Landcscaping 
Professional Fees 
COi 

Adjusted Balance in Construction Account at October 31, 2019 

2. Funds Available For Construction at October 31, 2019 
Book Balance of Construction Fund October 31, 2019 

Construction Funds available at October 31, 2019 

3. Investments - Regions Bank 

October 31, 2019 
Construction Fund: 

IY.Q.g 
Overnight 

Yield 
0.43% 

$540,635.01 

$540,635.01 

Maturity 
$540,635.01 

$1,985,075.00 

$23,275.29 
$0.00 

{$1.27) 

($609, 769.12) 
($627,965.65) 

$0.00 
$0.00 

{$18,107.17) 
($211,872.07) 

$540,635.01 

Principal 
$540,635.01 

Contracts Payable $0.00 
------'---

Balance at 10/31/2019 $540,635.01 
============ 
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